
AGENDA
POWELL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2023

7:00 PM

  
I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
  
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
   
 a. Approval of the Minutes from the Powell Development Corporation Meeting held on

September 26, 2023. 
 09.26.2023 community-improvement-corporation_minutes_summary.pdf
  
III. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT
   
 a. Make up of Powell Development Corporation Board
  
IV. REPORT OF THE TREASURER
   
 a. Financial Report - September, 2023
 09.30.2023 Monthly Financial Packet.pdf
  
V. CITY COUNCIL / COMMISSION / COMMITTEE REPORTS
  
VI. NEW BUSINESS
   
 a. Powell Development Corporation Operational Budget - 2024
 2024 PDC Operational Budget - Draft.pdf
   
 b. Discussion on Facade Program
   
 c. Update on CoHatch Agreement
   
 d. Review of Economic Development Position Hiring Process
  
VII. OLD BUSINESS
   
 a. Website Design
  
VIII. FUTURE BUSINESS
   
 a. Next Meeting Date:  November 28, 2023
  
IX. ADJOURNMENT

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2242693/09.26.2023_community-improvement-corporation_minutes_summary.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2242770/09.30.2023_Monthly_Financial_Packet.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2242512/2024_PDC_Operational_Budget_-_Draft.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
POWELL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  
MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 26, 2023 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

Chairman Jim Hrivnak called the September 26, 2023, Powell Development Corporation meeting 
to order at 7:04 p.m. The following members were present for the meeting: Jim Hrivnak, 
Chairman; Nicole Scott, Treasurer; Andy White, City Manager; Mayor Daniel Swartwout, Council 
Representative. Absent from the meeting was Ryan Hercehnroether. Also in attendance was 
Rosa Ocheltree, Finance Director; Samantha Borchers, Assistant Finance Director; and Pam 
Miller from the Powell Chamber of Commerce. 

 
Councilmembers present included Jim Hrivnak, Andrew D White, Nicole Scott, Jeffrey Tyler, 
Rosa Ocheltree, Ryan Herchenroether. 

 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a. Approval of the Minutes from the Powell Development Corporation meeting held on 

August 22, 2023.   
MOTION: Daniel Swartwout moved to approve the Powell Development Corporation Meeting 
Minutes of August 22, 2023. Chairman Jim Hrivnak seconded. Motion approved with a vote of 3-
0-1 (abstain: Nicole Scott). 

 
VOTE: Y: 3 N: 0 (None) AB: 1 

 
 
III. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT 

There was no comments provided. 
 
IV. REPORT OF THE TREASURER   

a. Financial Reports - August, 2023 
 

Assistant Finance Director Borchers edited the report to show monthly activities. For the month of 
August there was a $200,000 transfer from the CIP Fund, $2,696.53 of interest in the STAR Ohio 
Account, also there was approximately $1,500 paid towards audit fees. Year to date net income 
is $751,739.45. City Manager White acknowledged the significance of the transfer and the 
commitment from the City to the Development Corporation. City Manager White and Chairman 
Hrivnak provided their gratitude to Council for their support. Chairman Hrivnak questioned the 
status of the signature cards for the bank. Staff reported that either the Chairman Hrivnak or City 
Manager White would need to have their signatures added to the account. Finance Director 
Ocheltree explained that either both or one can go to the bank to complete this process, and staff 
also needs to add. This would allow Nicole Scott access to the bank. 

 
V. CITY COUNCIL / COMMISSION / COMMITTEE REPORTS  

Mayor Swartwout provided an update highlighting the past City Council meetings in which Council has 
been preparing for the upcoming budget season. There have been work shops related to the potential 
redevelopment of Village Green relating to place setting, design guidelines and working on an 
agreement. There was also the first reading of 2024-2028 CIP and also for a potential economic 

2



development agreement for Redwood. He expects these items to be on for a second reading at 
the next regular meeting. He discussed the proposed CIP has more details on projects, timelines, 
and funding. Finance Director Ocheltree discussed that last years CIP included projects to only 
be funded through the CIP, but this years proposed CIP incorporates other major projects that 
have funding from other funds, such as, General Funds or TIFs. City Manager White also 
discussed the inclusion of grant dollars in the proposed CIP. 

 
City Manager White discussed looking at partnering with private entities for large scale engineering 
projects and discussed the North Depot being flipped for Encore Park. He discussed that it has been 
two years since the passage of the income tax increase and residents are going to see more projects 
completed. This funding is cash flow from existing resources due to the restructuring of the income 
tax. He noted that $49 M dollars of funding is dedicated to the project scope over five year plan. 
Mayor Swartwout provided further information on how to access previous recordings and agenda 
materials on the website, especially relating to the redevelopment of Village Green. 

 
Mayor Swartwout discussed attending the recent Planning and Zoning Commission meeting that 
included a presentation on a potential next phase of Horse Power Farms. There was a lot of 
community interest and public comment regarding the sketch plan. Being a sketch plan, there 
was no formal action taken by the Commission. 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Powell Development Corporation Operational Budget - 2024  
Finance Director Ocheltree discussed the budget process and that the City is starting the 
operating budget process. For the Powell Development Corporation budget, the normal 
process would be for the board to talk about the strategy and what they want to accomplish. 
Once these are identified, then staff can determine what resources will be needed to 
accomplish their goals and then embed these figures into the budget. The budget needs to 
be completed earlier or at the same time as the City budget is approved. She is currently 
planning on having the first reading of the budget presented to the City Council at the 
November 7 meeting. She is hoping to have the budget from PDC by the first reading. 

 
Finance Director Ocheltree reviewed the beginning balance of year end, the transfer of the 
City to the PDC, an the interest rate of STAR Ohio. Based on these factors she discussed 
the anticipated funds available to the PDC. She reviewed the expenditures, including audit 
fees, insurance renewals, tax preparation fees, accounting fees, and EV charging station 
maintenance. Ms. Borchers discussed the charging station increased utility costs. At the 
Murphy Park charging station, AEP has started charging a transmission and distribution fee. 
This is a new fee, and the monthly invoices for electric have increased from approximately 
$250/month to $1,500/month. Chairman Hrivnak discussed that Assistant City Manager 
Tyler indicated that he would be working on a reconciliation with staff and do a market 
survey to present at a future meeting. Nicole Scott questioned if the rates charged have 
flexibility to change as the PDC sees fit. The PDC set up the pricing structure and can 
change. This is not seen in the Fee Schedule. Finance Director Ocheltree discussed that 
she sent the invoice to the energy consultant to review. 

 
Chairman Hrivnak discussed the new website cost. staff is estimating the cost to revamp 
the website at around $50,000. Finance Director Ocheltree discussed that there will be a 
part of the cost for the website by the PDC, but is unsure the amount. She also discussed 
other projects, including the pending job creation contract with a final payout in 2024, and 
development grant attached to CoHatch TIF agreement. Nicole Scott questioned if there 
was further discussion on the cost structure for the economic development position. City 
Manager White discussed the template provides the availability of fund balance that is not 
appropriated. The budget does not include the expression of the liability of the cost share of 
the employee to be hired. They are currently in the interview process and hope to include a 

3



final interview process to include Chairman Hrivnak and other members of Council. 
Chairman Hrivnak discussed the Facade Improvement Program and voiced his support of 
the concept and may need more detailed discussion on consideration of limited projects or 
limit the total investment. City Manager discussed the benefit of having the Economic 
Development position to assist with this project alongside staff and PDC. Chairman Hrivnak 
requested that members of the board bring back at the next meeting requested items to be 
added to the budget. Finance Director recommended that PDC consider adopting a Fund 
Balance Policy. This will allow the PDC to know their limits. 

 
 
VII.  FUTURE BUSINESS 
  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
Pam Miller, Executive Director 
Powell Area Chamber of Commerce 
36 Grace Drive 
Powell, Ohio 

 
Pam Miller invited the PDC to attend the upcoming workshop on October 18, 2023 on Intel 
on Intel. 

 
a. Next Meeting Date - October 24, 2023 @ 7 pm 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
  

MOTION: Mayor Dan Swartwout moved to adjourn the Powell Development Corporation 
Meeting. This motion was seconded by City Manager Andy White. Motion approved by 
consensus. The meeting adjourned at 7:57 p.m. 

 
VOTE: 

 
 
Y: 4 

 
 
N: 0 (none) 

 
 
AB: 0 (none) 
  

MINUTES APPROVED: Tuesday, October 24, 2023 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Daniel Swartwout, Date Mayor 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Elaine McCloskey, Date Clerk 

4



2023 YTD 2023 Mth 2023
2023 Sep Sep Remaining

Budget Actual Actual Balance
Beginning Balance 468,614.13$         468,614.13$              -$                          -$                            
  Previous month outstanding checks - cashed
Transfer in from General Fund -                        -                            -                            -                              
Transfer in from CIP Fund 385,000.00           650,000.00                -                            (265,000.00)                
Interest 15,000.00             8,914.79                    3,022.93                    6,085.21                     
44 N Liberty Rental Income -                        -                            -                            -                              
Other -                         10,000.00                  -                            (10,000.00)                  
Total Revenue 868,614.13$         1,137,528.92$           3,022.93$                  (268,914.79)$              

Budget Expenditures Expenditures Remaining
Administrative Expenses
       Insurance 1,500.00$             250.00$                     -$                          1,250.00$                   
       Audit Fees 2,000.00               1,480.00                    -                            520.00                        
       Tax Preparation Fees 1,250.00               1,219.00                    -                            31.00                          
       Accounting Fees 10,000.00             15.00                         15.00                         9,985.00                     
       Charging Station Maintenance (yrly) 1,000.00               -                            -                            1,000.00                     
       Charging Station Utility Costs (yrly) 3,500.00               5,414.81                    3,443.49                    (1,914.81)                    
       Charging Station Installation 17,000.00             16,854.00                  -                            146.00                        
       Powell Community Concert Band Supplies (shirts) 2,000.00               -                            -                            2,000.00                     
       Advertising - Chamber of Commerce 1,600.00               131.25                       -                            1,468.75                     
       Contingent Expenses 10,000.00             1,082.50                    -                            8,917.50                     

Prior Year Remaining Encumbrance
       Camoin Associates - 2023 64,487.25             64,487.25                  -                            -                              

44 N. Liberty Expenses
       Repair and Maintenance Costs -                        -                            -                            -                              

Relocation Contracts:
     Elite Title (2019 - 2023 payout) 20,000.00             -                            -                            20,000.00                   

Job Creation Contracts:
      BCI (2019 - 2024 payout) 26,000.00             -                            -                            26,000.00                   
      Platinum Group (2019 - 2023 payout) 20,000.00             -                            -                            20,000.00                   

Strategic Land Acquisition

     Elite Land Title Purchase - 4630 W Powell Road 300,000.00           295,291.22                -                            4,708.78                     

Small Busines Grant Program - carry over from 2021
     Remaining balance to be issued -                        -                            -                            -                              

Total Expenditures 480,337.25$         386,225.03$              3,458.49$                  94,112.22$                 

Net Income/(Loss) 388,276.88$         751,303.89$              (435.56)$                   
Health Giving Escrow -                        -                            
Powell Chamber Escrow -                        -                            

Actual Available Ending Balance 388,276.88$         751,303.89$              

Outstanding check balance 3,443.49$                  

Available Balance 754,747.38$              

Balance per bank statement - Fifth Third 85,831.96$                
Balance per bank statement - StarOhio 668,914.79                
Diff 0.63$                         

Outstanding Checks
American Electric Power Ck 1204 3,443.49$                  

3,443.49$                  

Powell Development Corporation
Financial Report

As of Sep 30, 2023

5



POWELL COMM IMROVEMENT CORP
47 HALL ST
POWELL OH 43065-8357

PSKEY01|DDA0|01|FTCO|20230930|8|0|S|1|4723|4723|7282960348|0|11145||PSKEY99|

FTCSTMT028 028 20230930 UDSPDFSTMT 0000000007282960348 DDA

Page 1 of 2

(CENTRAL OHIO)
P.O. BOX 630900 CINCINNATI OH  45263-0900

For additional information and account disclosures, please visit www.53.com/businessbanking

Statement Period Date: 9/1/2023 - 9/30/2023
Account Type: 5/3 BUS ELITE CKG

Account Number: 7282960348

0

4723

Banking Center: Powell Road
Banking Center Phone: 614-734-4287

Business Banking Support: 877-534-2264

Account Summary - 7282960348

09/01 Beginning Balance $85,846.96 Number of Days in Period 30
Checks

1 Withdrawals / Debits $(15.00)
Deposits / Credits

09/30 Ending Balance $85,831.96

Analysis Period: 08/01/23 - 08/31/23

Standard Monthly Service Charge $50.00

Standard Monthly Service Charge Waived (see below) -$50.00
CHK RETURNED ITEM OR CHARGEBACK $15.00

Service Charge withdrawn on 09/13/23 $15.00

Standard Monthly Service Charge waived if: Current Relationship Overview:

Your business maintains a total monthly average Balance Criteria Met? Yes
balance of $50,000 across its business checking, savings, Total Combined Monthly Average Balance $109,920.64
and certificate of deposit accounts.

OR your business has a business loan or line of credit. Business Loan or Line of Credit? No

OR your business spends at least $500 per month on Other Criteria Met? No
its business credit card PLUS has one of the following: $500 Business Credit Card Spend? No
Electronic Deposit Manager OR Cash Management Electronic Deposit Manager? No
Essentials. Cash Management Essentials? No

Withdrawals / Debits 1 item totaling $15.00
Date Amount Description
09/13 15.00 SERVICE CHARGE

Daily Balance Summary
Date Amount

09/13 85,831.96

IF YOU USE TREASURY MANAGEMENT SERVICES, PLEASE NOTE THAT WE HAVE UPDATED OUR TERMS & CONDITIONS. GO TO 53.COM/TM-TC TO
VIEW. 

Will look into this 
charge. No other info 
on the statement.

6

sborchers.0623
Highlight

sborchers.0623
Highlight



This page intentionally left blank.

FTCSTMT028 028 20230930 UDSPDFSTMT 0000000007282960348 DDA

Page 2 of 2
PSKEY01|DDA0|01|FTCO|20230930|8|0|S|1|4723|4723|7282960348|0|11146||PSKEY99|

7



8



9



INVOICE(S) PENDING APPROVAL

10



11



12



$0.00

10/30/2023
08C97
POWELL COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 
CORPORATION

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00$192.70

Payment Due Date:
Customer Number:
Customer Name:

120+1-30 31-60 61-90 91-120Current

Make Check Payable To:
Treasurer of State of Ohio

Remit To:
Keith Faber
Auditor of State
Accounts Receivable Office
P.O. Box 711825
Cincinnati, OH 45271-1825

Apply Payment To:

42200 - IPA Quality Review - 08C97DELA-FI122

Amount Enclosed:

$192.70Balance Due:

PLEASE RETURN BOTTOM PORTION WITH YOUR REMITTANCE

10/30/2023

$0.00
$192.70

$0.00
$192.70

9/30/2023

 Account Summary

Invoice for Services

 Transactions

How to Contact Us:
1-800-282-0370
Monday - Friday 8-4

Payment Due Date:
Statement Date:

Current Balance
Payments, Credits

Current Charges
Previous Balance

POWELL COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

47 HALL STREET
ROSA OCHELTREE, FINANCE DIRECTOR

POWELL OH 43065      

08C97Customer Number:

09/30/2023 BILL0000000332175    IPA Quality Review - 08C97DELA-FI122 $192.70

The AOS is transitioning to accept
only electronic payments.
Please visit https://eservices.ohioauditor.gov

zBlank
zBlank
zBlank
zBlank
zBlank
zBlank
zBlank
zBlank
zBlank
zBlank

13



Ohio law requires the Auditor of State to charge public offices the total cost of audits 
conducted. ORC 117.13

However, the law also provides that, for local public offices, AOS audit charges shall 
be offset based on resources provided by the Ohio General Assembly. Resources 
currently available to subsidize AOS audit costs are the Local Government Audit 
Support Fund (LGASF)[1] and the state General Revenue Fund.

For state agencies, AOS audit charges are offset to comply with federal cost recovery 
guidelines by a subsidy provided by the Ohio General Assembly from the state General 
Revenue Fund.

The current federally approved cost recovery rate for local public offices is $92.30. 
The subsidized AOS rate charged is $41.00 per hour.

The current federally approved cost recovery rate for state agencies is $91.28. The 
current subsidized AOS rate charged to state agencies is $85.00 per hour.

For audit services performed by AOS interns, the AOS rate is 50 percent of the 
otherwise applicable rate.

The current subsidized AOS rates are financially feasible only due to state 
appropriations made by the Ohio General Assembly from the Local Government Audit 
Support Fund and the General Revenue Fund.

[1] The Auditor of State’s Office proposed establishment of the LGASF in FY 2020 is to avoid an 
immediate and substantial increase in audit charges for AOS local audit clients..

EXPLANATION OF BILLING RATES and CHARGES

NOTICE TO DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS

A failure to pay the Auditor of State in full within forty-five days of the payment due date 
identified on this invoice shall constitute a delinquent account. Failure to make payment 
will result in the delinquent account being certified to the Ohio Attorney General’s 
Office, Collection Enforcement, for collection under Ohio Revised Code 131.02(A). 
Alternatively, Ohio Revised Code section 117.13 (D) authorizes the Director of the 
Office of Budget Management or the county auditor, in order to satisfy certified 
balances owed to the office of the Auditor of State, to withhold from a public office with 
delinquent accounts any amounts that are available up to the amount owed by the 
public office from those funds lawfully payable and due to the public office.

The public office should contact the Auditor of State’s Finance Department to make 
arrangements to pay delinquent balances prior to certification.

14



Current Invoice Charge Detail

08C97DELA-FI122     Renner, Dawn M 4.00 $164.009/7/2023 - 9/23/2023

Alexander, Leah C 0.70 $28.709/7/2023 - 9/23/2023

4.70 $192.70BILL0000000332175

Audit Hours Amount

15



2023
Budget Budget New Notes:

Beginning Balance 468,614.13$         475,000.00$             
This is an estimate. Beg. Balance will vary based on 
actual 2023 expenses.

Transfer in from General Fund -$                     -$                          
Transfer in from CIP Fund 450,000.00$         850,000.00$             
Interest 15,000.00$           30,000.00$               Star Ohio monthly statements
44 N Liberty Rental Income -$                     -$                          
Other -$                      -$                          
Total Revenue 933,614.13$         1,359,000.00$          

Budget Expenditures
Administrative Expenses
       Insurance 1,500.00$            1,500.00$                 
       Audit Fees 2,000.00$            2,000.00$                 
       Tax Preparation Fees 1,250.00$            1,500.00$                 
       Accounting Fees 10,000.00$           10,000.00$               
       Charging Station Maintenance (yrly) 1,000.00$            1,000.00$                 
       Charging Station Utility Costs (yrly) 3,500.00$            3,500.00$                 Pricing structure is self sufficient
       Charging Station Installation 17,000.00$           17,000.00$               Budget Revised at Feb Meeting
       Powell Community Concert Band Supplies (shirts) 2,000.00$            2,000.00$                 
       Advertising - Chamber of Commerce 1,600.00$            1,600.00$                 

Website Costs -$                     10,000.00$               X
Promotional Video/Material -$                     20,000.00$               X
Powell Festival Sponsorship -$                     20,000.00$               X

       Contingence Expenses 10,000.00$           10,000.00$               

Prior Year Remaining Encumbrance
       Camoin Associates - 2023 64,487.25$           -$                          

Relocation Contracts:

     Elite Title (2019 - 2023 payout) 20,000.00$           -$                          
PDC should reach out to contact to closeout 
pending reimbursements

Job Creation Contracts:
      BCI (2019 - 2024 payout) 26,000.00$           26,000.00$               
      Platinum Group (2019 - 2023 payout) 20,000.00$           -$                          

Strategic Land Acquisition
     Elite Land Title Purchase - 4630 W Powell Road 300,000.00$         296,250.00$             

Cohatch Economic Development Agreement
Development Grant ($940,000 in 5 years) -$                     188,000.00$             X
Rental Agreement -$                     -$                          

Downtown Façade Improvement Program

Blanket Distribution -$                     100,000.00$             X
Up to $25,000 per application/project. Up to 4 
grants per year

Total Expenditures 480,337.25$         710,350.00$             

Total Ending Balance 453,276.88$         648,650.00$             
Health Giving Escrow -$                     -$                          
Powell Chamber Escrow -$                     -$                          
Actual Available Ending Balance 453,276.88$         648,650.00$             

Available Balance 648,650.00$             

Powell Development Corporation
2024 Proposed Budget

16


	Powell Development Corporation Agenda
	Item a. - 09.26.2023 community-improvement-corporation_minutes_summary.pdf
	Item a. - 09.30.2023 Monthly Financial Packet.pdf
	Item a. - 2024 PDC Operational Budget - Draft.pdf



